Association Business

AD INTERIM BUSINESS OF THE COUNCIL OF THE AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION, 1938–1939.

Office of the Secretary, 2215 Constitution Ave., Washington, D. C.

LETTER NO. 10.

July 10, 1939.

To the Members of the Council:

73. The Kilmer Prize. Motion No. 22 (Council Letter No. 8, page 455) has been carried with the following voting in the affirmative: Ch, Sw, Co, Mo, Ho, Ga, Mi, Li, La, Ke, Dm, Hi, Ck, Du, Ro, Je, Fi. The L. G. Balfour Company has been requested to proceed with the preparation of the Kilmer Prize Key.

74. Use of Text of N. F. VI. Motions Nos. 23 (Council Letter No. 8, page 455) and 26 (Council Letter No. 9, page 457) have been carried and the P. Blackiston's Son & Co. and Prentice Ha'l, Inc., have been advised. The following members voted in the affirmative: Ch, Sw, Co, Mo, Ho, Ga, Mi, Li, La, Ke, Dm, Hi, Ck, Du, Ro, Je, Fi.

The following communication has been received from Chairman DuMez of the Committee on Publications:

"Inasmuch as Mr. D. O. Haynes had permission to use portions of the Text of the N. F. V in the booklet entitled the Era Key to the U. S. P. and N. F., I can see no good reason why the Haynes and George Company should not be granted permission to use portions of the Text of the N. F. VI in a new edition of this booklet. I, therefore, recommend that permission be granted on the same terms as heretofore."

(Motion No. 29) It is moved by DuMez that The Haynes and George Company be granted permission to use portions of the text of N. F. VI in a revised edition of the Era Key to the U. S. P. and N. F., with the usual fee of \$5.00 and the customary acknowledgment.

75. Election of Members. Motions Nos. 24 (Council Letter No. 8, page 456) and 28 (Council Letter No. 9, page 458) have been carried and applicants numbered 567 to 634, inclusive, are declared elected. The following members voted in the affirmative: Ch, Sw, Co, Mo, Ho, Ga, Mi, Li, La, Ke, Dm, Hi, Ck, Du, Ro, Je, Fi.

76. Refunding Loan on Lot No. 7. Motion No. 25 (Council Letter No. 8, page 457) has been carried with the following members voting in the affirmative: Ch, Sw, Co, Mo, Ho, Ga, Mi, Li, La, Ke, Dm, Hi, Ck, Du, Ro, Je, Fi. The extension agreement, signed by President Lascoff and Secretary Kelly, and the new note for \$36,400, signed by S. L. Hilton as attorney-in-fact of the Association, have been forwarded to the Maryland Trust Company.

77. Purdue University Student Branch. The undersigned students in the School of Pharmacy of Purdue University whose applications for membership are attached, desire to establish a Student Branch in the School and hereby request the Council to approve the formation of the Branch and the Constitution and By-Laws submitted herewith:

The following officers for the Branch were elected: *President*, George E. Osborne; *Vice-President*, Richard E. Gerding; *Treasurer*, Henry Bikin; and *Secretary*, Harry W. Schaefer.

CONSTITUTION.

ARTICLE I—Name. This organization shall be known as "The Purdue University School of Pharmacy Student Branch of the AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION."

ARTICLE II—Purpose. It shall be the purpose of this organization to uphold the aims, and to aid in the pursuance of the program set forth by the AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION. Further, it shall undertake a feasible scheme of activity, calculated to promote scientific investigation, professional interest and an esprit de corps among students of pharmacy with whom it may have contact.

ARTICLE III—Membership. Section 1. The members of this Branch shall be elected from among the bona fide students of the Purdue University School of Pharmacy and students registered in the Graduate School of Purdue University who are majoring in Pharmacy, Pharmaceutical Chemistry, or Materia Medica who have met the requirements for associate membership in the AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION. Section 2. Two members may submit the name of a candidate to the chairman of the Membership Committee, who will present the name of said candidate at the next meeting of the branch. In the absence of the candidate a vote shall be taken by secret ballot. A three-fourths vote of those present shall elect a candidate to membership in the branch.

ARTICLE IV—Officers. Section 1. The officers of the Branch shall be: (a) a president, (b) a vice-president, (c) a secretary, (d) a treasurer.

Section 2. Election of officers shall take place annually at the regular meeting in May. A majority vote taken by secret ballot shall be necessary to elect an officer, after nominations from the floor. These officers shall be installed at the same meeting.

Section 3. The duties of the officers shall be described in the by-laws of the Branch.

ARTICLE V—Committees. Section 1. The following committees shall be permanent standing committees of the Branch. They shall be appointed by the president at the first meeting in the academic year unless otherwise selected as provided herein. (a) Executive Committee. This committee shall consist of the officers of the Branch and two members elected by the Branch. The president of the Branch shall act as chairman of this committee. (b) Program Committee. This committee shall consist of the vice-president as chairman and four other members. (c) Membership Committee. This committee shall consist of three members. (d) Public Relations Committee. This committee shall consist of the secretary as chairman and three other members.

ARTICLE VI—*Meetings*. Meetings shall be held at least once a month, and at any other time that may be deemed advisable by the executive committee. Every member shall receive due notification of each meeting at least one week before it is to be held.

ARTICLE VII—Quorum. Nine members, including at least two officers, shall constitute a quorum.

ARTICLE VIII—Fiscal Year. The academic year shall constitute the fiscal year.

ARTICLE IX—*Presiding Officer*. In the absence of the president the next succeeding officer shall take the chair according to the following order: vice-president, treasurer and secretary.

ARTICLE X-Annual Dues. The dues of this organization shall be \$5.00 per annum payable to the AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION, Washington, D. C. Two dollars of this amount will be returned to the treasury of the local student Branch. Three dollars is retained by the parent organization for which the student shall receive the JOURNAL OF THE AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION.

ARTICLE XI—Amendments. This constitution and by-laws or any part thereof may be amended or repealed by a two-thirds vote of the members present at two successive meetings.

BY-LAWS.

1. Duties of the Officers: (a) The president shall preside over all Branch meetings of the Executive Committee, and shall appoint all standing committees and such special committees as he may deem necessary. (b) The vice-president shall exercise the duties of the president in case of the latter's absence and shall act as the chairman of the Program Committee. (c) The secretary shall keep a record of all meetings. He shall prepare and forward reports of such meetings, and any other correspondence necessary, to the secretary of the AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL Association. He shall keep records of all correspondence received or entered into by the Branch. He shall notify each member of the Branch of the time and place of all meetings. He shall act as the chairman of the Public Relations Committee. (d) The treasurer shall keep a record of all funds of the Branch. Before the last meeting of the fiscal year he shall present to the Executive Committee a financial statement for their approval. He shall make all remittances to the secretary of the AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION as are necessary upon receipt of funds for dues from the members, in the manner prescribed by the rules of the AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL Association. He shall present all bills and expenditures to the executive committee. He shall issue duplicated receipts for all funds received, and obtain receipts for all funds disbursed. He shall preserve a record of all such transactions.

2. All records of the Branch shall be available for examination to any member of the Branch at any time.

3. All meetings shall be conducted according to Parliamentary Law.

4. Duties of the Standing Committees: (a) The Executive Committee shall transact such business as may arise and need immediate action and cannot be postponed until the subse-

quent Branch meeting. It shall approve or reject all bills and proposed expenditures submitted to it by the treasurer. Approval for expenditures exceeding fifteen dollars must be obtained by a majority vote of the members present at a Branch meeting. The Executive Committee shall audit the treasurer's report and, upon approving the report, shall present it at the last meeting of the year for the approval of the members. (b) The Program Committee shall arrange for all programs to be sponsored by the Branch. The chairman shall advise the secretary of all invitations to guests, and acknowledgments relative to activities of the Program Committee. (c) The Membership Committee shall submit the names of any candidates for membership as provided in Article III of the constitution. (d) The Public Relations Committee shall be responsible for the publicity of the Branch and its activities.

5. All funds of the Branch shall be held in a bank account. The president and the treasurer shall act as co-signitaries for all withdrawals from this account.

6. The Branch shall enroll all members of the faculty, who are regular members of the AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION, as honorary members of the Branch. They shall constitute a Faculty Advisory Board.

7. Resolutions of the AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION, or any of its rules or laws shall take precedence over the rules or resolutions of this Branch, when the two shall be in conflict.

(*Motion No. 30*) It is moved by Little that the application to establish the Purdue University Student Branch of the Association and the proposed Constitution and By-Laws be approved.

78. Applicants for Membership. The following applications, properly endorsed, accompanied with the first year's dues, and recommended by two members of the Association, have been received:

Nos.: 635, Charles Rabe, Jr., Steeleville, Ill.; 636, Dennis E. Murphy, 3175 Linwood Rd., Cincinnati, O.; 637, Joseph Frost, 86-52 Queens Blvd., Elmhurst, N. Y.; 638, Blanche R. Fontaine, 92 Maple St., Woonsocket, R. I.; 639, Chester C. Coon, 130 Russell St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 640, Julia C. Cornelius, Women's Residence Halls, W. Lafayette, Ind.; 641, Charles L. Boswell, School of Pharmacy, W. Lafayette, Ind.; 642, James W. Bolton, 305 State St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 643, Henry Bikin, 704 W. 46th St., Gary, Ind.; 644, Hugh A. Cotton, 212 Wiggins St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 645, Fred J. Daoust, 400 Northwestern Ave., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 646, George S. Denton, 503 State St., Lafayette, Ind.; 647, John J. Easley, 130 Russell St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 648, Sister Clara Francis Faulkner, St. Francis Convent, Lafayette, Ind.; 649, Richard F. Gerding, 306 S. Grant St., Lafayette, Ind.; 650, Ruth G. Glunt, 724 W. Oak St., Union City, Ind.; 651, Kenneth A. Groom, Jr., Star City, Ind.; 652, Roscoe J. Haas, 1230 W. Stephenson, Freeport, Ill.; 653, Don J. Henry, Jr., 455 Pine Lake Ave., La Porte, Ind.; 654, Henry W. Heubner, 121 Wiggins St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 655, John H. Houseworth, 1007 First St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 656, Robert J. Kantz, 2828 Main St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 657, Sister Laurina Klein, St. Francis Convent, W. Lafayette, Ind.; 658, Herbert F. Le Pevre, 617 Waldron St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 659, Myron W. McKinney, Winslow, Ind.; 660, George E. Osborn, Rural Route 3, Rochester, Ind.; 661, John W. Petry, 427 State St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 662, Marjorie J. Rogers, 2604 Cason St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 663, Stewart E. Ruch, 503 State St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 664, Colonel N. Sarles, English, Ind.; 665, Harry W. Schaefer, School of Pharmacy, W. Lafayette, Ind.; 666, Wade A. Shonower, 122 North St., W. Lafayette, Ind.; 667, Warren T. Sullivan, Jr., 502 Market St., Vevay, Ind.; 668, Joseph B. Vaughan, Route 5, Lafayette, Ind.; 669, Sister Eileen Van Ackeren, St. Francis Convent, Lafayette, Ind.; 670, Samuel D. Weldy, Jr., 1615 Maple Ave., Noblesville, Ind.; 671, Leonard W. Yoder, 216 Waldron, W. Lafayette, Ind.; 672, Irving G. Kravets, 1939 N. Lincoln Ave., Chicago, Ill.; 673, Harry L. Novack, 1210 N. 7th St., Philadelphia, Pa.; 674, Donald R. Mathieson, Room 212, Pharmacy Bldg., Lincoln, Nebr.; 675, Edward E. Schuler, 2473 Beals Ave., Detroit, Mich.; 676, Francois X. Demers, Jr., 152 Easton St., Lawrence, Mass.; 677, Harold S. Feldman, 122 Howland St., Roxbury, Mass.; 678, Myrbel Newton, 12 Clifton Rd., Wellesley Hills, Mass.; 679, Ernest W. Grant, Mattakeesett St., Bryantville, Mass.; 680, Paul H. Hauber, Allendale, Mo.; 681, Riehard H. Barry, Box 721, Brownsville, Pa.; 682, Clifford T. Pacenta, 201 Minersville St., Pottsville, Pa.; 683, Sara E. Koelker, 5535 Kamin St., Pittsburgh, Pa.; 684, Stanley Bromberg, 1108 Decatur St., Brooklyn, N. Y.; 685, Aldridge K. Hardee, Jr., University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill, N. Car.; 686, Albert B. Gumer, 1388 S. Second St., Louisville, Ky.; 687, Alexander Jaret, 229 E. 60th St., New York, N. Y.; 688, David P. Bach, 11

W. 42nd St., New York, N. Y.; 689, Joseph Bander, 3670 Third Ave., New York, N. Y. 690, Wilbur E. Johnston, 178 Angell St., Providence, R. I.; 691, F. F. Housman, 920 Audubon Pky, Louisville, Ky.; 692, Donald A. Clarke, 525 E. 68th St., New York, N. Y.; 693, Conrado F. Asenjo, 803 State St., Madison, Wis.; 694, George H. Schneller, 105–19 37th Ave., Corona, N. Y.; 695, E. M. Josey, 228 Main St., Frankfort, Ky.; 696, Adolph Henning, 421 Hillside Place, South Orange, N. J.; 697, Albert Greenbaum, 157 So. Center St., Orange, N. J.; 698, Michael Iannarone, 195 S. 6th St., Newark, N. J.; 699, Irving Baker, 149 Hamilton Ave., Passaic, N. J.; 700, Virginia B. Beshirian, 101 Warburton Ave., Hawthorne, N. J.; 701, George J. Bonanno, 230 Lorraine Ave., Upper Montclair, N. J.; 702, Peter Borromeo, 436 Harrison St., Passaic, N. J.; 703, Richard C. Bozian, 100 State St., Hackensack, N. J.; 704, Salvatore Bracchitta, 417 S. Elmer St., Westfield, N. J.; 705, Vincenzo P. Capone, 346 14th Ave., Newark, N. J.; 706, Alex Chase, 402 Chadwick Ave., Newark, N. J.; 707, Philip J. Cocco, 346 S. Jefferson St., Orange, N. J.; 708, Cohen, Charles M., 48 Second St., Somerville, N. J.; 709, Arthur C. Conklin, 44 Dawson St., Belleville, N. J.; 710, Paul F. Crutchlow, 14 Walnut St., Sussex, N. J.; 711, Isadore Davis, 728 S. 20th St., Newark, N. J.; 712, Leo Dubrow, 76 Prince St., Newark, N. J.; 713, Kenneth Farber, 447 Ave C., Bayonne, N. J.; 714, Michael R. Finelli, 258 Kearny Ave., Kearny, N. J.; 715, Simpson L. Fruchtman, 14 Whittingham Ter., Milburn, N. J.; 716, Louis Garawitz, 182 Ridgewood Ave., Newark, N. J.; 717, Henry Patrick Guarino, 65 S. Day St., Orange, N. J.; 718, Albert Hirt, 88 Maple St., Teaneck, N. J.; 719, Theodore Horoschak, 414 Knickerbocker Ave., Paterson, N. J.; 720, Bernard Hyman, 146 State St., Perth Amboy, N. J.; 721, Donald Kerr, 135 Main St., Hackettstown, N. J.; 722, Hyman Lebson, 75 Main St., Lodi, N. J.; 723, Irving Levine, 186 Leslie St., Newark, N. J.; 724, Warren F. Maher, 31 High St., Butler, N. J.; 725, Arby Mintz, 47 Mercer St., Jersey City, N. J.; 726, Daniel M. Pasquale, Jr., 111 Mead St., Newark, N. J.; 727, Sigmund Piotrowicz, 144 N. 10th Ave., Manville, N. J.; 728, Henry Poche, 586 Hawthorne Ave., Newark, N. J.; 729, Frank N. Romano, 204 5th St., Hoboken, N. J.; 730, Wesley R. Ross, 31 Holsman St., Paterson, N. J.; 731, Saul Roth, 580 New Brunswick Ave., Perth Amboy, N. J.; 732, John L. Seidel, 517 Raritan, Highland Park, N. J.; 733, Isadore Singer, 113 Brighton Ave., Perth Amboy, N. J.; 734, Michael Stopen, 441 Penn St., Perth Amboy, N. J.; 735, Alexander Weiss, 198 Stevens Ave., Jersey City, N. J.; 736, George W. Wyllie, 47 N. 13th St., Newark, N. J.; 737, Hyman Zatkowsky, 218 Loomis St., Elizabeth, N. J.

(Motion No. 31) Vote on applications for membership in the Association.

E. F. KELLY Secretary.

EXAMINATION OF PHARMACISTS FOR THE MEDICAL ADMINISTRATIVE CORPS, REGULAR ARMY.

The War Department is announcing an examination November 13-17, 1939, to qualify candidates for appointment as Second Lieutenant in the Medical Administrative Corps, Regular Army, to fill the five existing vacancies.

Appointments will be made from pharmacists, male citizens of the United States, between the ages of 21 and 32 years, who are graduates of recognized schools or colleges of pharmacy, that is, schools or colleges approved by the American Association of Colleges of Pharmacy, requiring four years of instruction for graduation and legally authorized to confer the degree of Bachelor of Science in Pharmacy.

Examination for appointment includes physical, a written examination in Practice of Pharmacy, Pharmaceutical Chemistry, Pharmacognosy, Pharmacology, and Bacteriology, Hygiene and Sanitation and an estimate of the candidate's adaptability for military service.

Examining boards will be convened at convenient locations throughout the continental limits of the United States for the examination of candidates authorized by the War Department to appear before them. Full information and application blanks will be furnished upon request by The Adjutant General, War Department, Washington, D. C. Applications will not be considered after October 28, 1939.

PRIZE MEMBERSHIP AWARDS FOR 1939.

- LOUISVILLE COLLEGE OF PHARMACY---Albert Ben Gumer, Greatest Scholarship Improvement (G. L. Curry).
- DUQUESNE UNIVERSITY -- Richard H. Barry, Excellence in Chemistry (H. C. Muldoon); Sara Elizabeth Koelker, Excellence in Materia Medica (Elbert Voss); Clifford Thomas Pacenta, Excellence in Pharmacy (Ralph R. Kreuer).
- UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA—Aldridge Kirk Hardee, Jr., Excellence in Pharmaceutical Subjects (Henry M. Burlage).
- KANSAS CITY COLLEGE OF PHARMACY---Paul Hutton Hauber, Excellence in Scholarship (D. V. Whitney).
- BROOKLYN COLLEGE OF PHARMACY Stanley Bromberg, Excellence in Scholarship.
- WAYNE UNIVERSITY—Faculty Award, Edward E. Schular, Excellence in Scholarship.
- MASSACHUSETTS COLLEGE OF PHARMACY— Ernest W. Grant, Excellence in Organic Chemistry (I. P. Gammon); Myrbel Newton, Excellence in Pharmacy (Leon A. Thompson); Harold S. Feldman, Excellence in Materia Medica (Wm. H. Glover); Bernard B. Jatul, Excellence in Business Administration (L. C. Ellis); Francois X. Demers, Jr., Excellence in Analytical Chemistry (E. V. Lynn).
- UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS—Wm. Gray Prize Irving G. Kravets, Excellence in Past Year's Work.
- TEMPLE UNIVERSITY—Harry L. Novack, Excellence in Scholarship (R. L. Swain).
- UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA—Donald R. Mathieson, Second Highest Scholarship (M. E. Rasdal).
- ST. LOUIS COLLEGE OF PHARMACY-Charles Rabe, Jr., Excellence in Past Year's Work.
- CREIGHTON UNIVERSITY—Freshman Award, Joseph Bogard, Greatest Improvement in Ideals (Henry Rush); Sophomore Award,
 Warren Rix, Highest General Average in Chemistry (Ted Connolly); Junior Award,
 Francis Walsh, Highest Average in Biological Sciences (Severin Water); Senior Award, Sister Rita Claire Engle, Highest Professional Ideals (R. L. Whaley); Edmond Killeen, Excellence in Sophomore Chemistry (Gustave E. Cwalina).

PERSONAL AND NEWS ITEMS.

Many seminarians will be surprised to learn that Dr. Marin S. Dunn is traveling in Australia and New Zealand this summer. Dr. Dunn was elected chairman of the Seminar but felt that he would have to forego that pleasure when the opportunity came to him to visit the botanical wonders of Australia and New Zealand. He sends his regrets at not being able to be with us this year.

Professor Earl B. Fischer, vice-chairman of the Seminar thus advances to the chairmanship. Professor Fischer will preside at the Blue Ridge meetings of the 1939 Seminar.

The Tennessee Pharmaccutical Association met for the 54th time, in Memphis, July 18th to 20th. One of the most interesting and entertaining programs ever planned was carried out. Among the speakers were: Dr. V. L. Fuqua, superintendent of the Pure Food and Drug Department of the State of Tennessee; a representative of the U.S. Department of Pure Food and Drugs on, "National Pure Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act;" L. F. Mitchell, member of the State Board of Health; Robert T. Walker, member of the State Board of Pharmacy; Dr. R. G. Leland, director of Medical Research, American Medical Association, "Socialized Medicine;" George W. Cunningham, superintendent of Federal Narcotic Bureau for Tennessee and Kentucky.

The Sixteenth Annual Meeting of the History of Science Society will be held in conjunction with the American Association for the Advancement of Science at Columbus, Ohio, December 27, 1939, to January 2, 1940. The Headquarters of the Society will be at the Chittenden Hotel.

Members wishing to appear on the program should communicate with Professor Louis C. Karpinski, Department of Mathematics, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Michigan.

The American Council on Pharmaceutical Education met in Atlantic City on Monday, July 24th, and continued in session for some days. This being the first regular meeting of the Council this year the week was crowded with discussions. Applications for accreditment, filed by colleges of pharmacy, were given detailed study. With a few exceptions, all the colleges of pharmacy making application have been inspected. All the inspection work was